
 
 

CANBY UTILITY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2022 
7:00 P.M. 

 
AGENDA 

 
Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Board of Directors and staff will be attending the meeting virtually.  The 
public is invited to attend the meeting virtually or in person at Canby Utility’s office, with measures in place to 

comply with the Governor’s Executive Order regarding social distancing. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. AGENDA 
 Additions, Deletions or Corrections to the Meeting Agenda 

III. CONSENT AGENDA 
 Approval of Agenda 
 Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes of February 8, 2022, and 

Special and Executive Session Minutes of February 22, 2022 (pp. 1-6) 
 Approval of Write-Offs  
 Approval of Payment of Water and Electric Bills 

IV. CITIZEN INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

V. BOARD REPORT 
 Chair Comments 
 Board Member Comments 

VI. STAFF REPORTS   
 Purchasing Agent: 

 Water Master Plan Bid Award 
 

Customer Service Supervisor: 
 Red Flag Rules Update (pp. 7-15) 

 
General Manager Updates 
 Fiscal Year 2023 Budget Process (pg. 16) 

VII. ADJOURN 



CANBY UTILITY  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 8, 2022 
Due to COVID-19 Pandemic, the Board of Directors and staff attended the meeting virtually. The public was 
invited to attend the meeting virtually or in person at Canby Utility's office, with measures to comply with the 

Governor’s Executive Order regarding social distancing. 

Board Present: Chair Thompson; Members Hill, Wagner, Horrax, and Gustafson 

Staff Present: Carol Sullivan, Interim General Manager; Barbara Benson, Board 
Secretary; Jason Berning, Operations Manager; Sue Arthur, Purchasing 
Agent; Cindy Dittmar, Customer Service Supervisor; and Jason Peterson, 
Operations Field Supervisor 

Others Present:  David Bajorin, City Council Liaison; and John Molamphy 

Chair Thompson called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 

Chair Thompson presented the meeting agenda for consideration. She asked for any additions, 
deletions, or corrections to the meeting agenda, and there were none.   

Chair Thompson presented the consent agenda for approval. Member Gustafson made the 
*MOTION to approve the consent agenda, consisting of the amended meeting agenda, regular
meeting minutes of January 20, 2022, write-offs in the amount of $111.42, payment of the
electric and water department bills in the amount of $1,017,457.05. Member Hill seconded, and
the motion passed unanimously.

Chair Thompson asked for citizen input on non-agenda items, and there was none. 

Chair Thompson recognized Member Wagner for his dedication and service to the Canby Utility 
Board. Member Wagner had completed his second two full terms on the Board of Directors. 
Chair Thompson highlighted the projects and activities that Member Wagner helped guide the 
utility through during his tenure.   

Human Resources/Administration Manager Barbara Benson presented a recommendation to 
revise Canby Utility’s Equal Employment Opportunity Anti-Harassment and Anti-
Discrimination Policy. The Board adopted the policy in February 2020, following new 
employment laws established in the 2019 legislative session. The proposed revisions include 
identifying specific individuals to receive complaints and adding the new CROWN Act 
language. These changes comply with Oregon law. In addition, our labor counsel drafted an 
investigation guidance procedure that will give management direction on how to properly 
navigate the complaint process to ensure compliance with the policy and law. After a brief 
discussion, Member Hill made the *MOTION to adopt updated Procedure 500 and Procedure 
501, the Equal Employment Opportunity Anti-Harassment and Anti-Discrimination Policy,  and 

1



Canby Utility 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 

Procedure 501, Investigation Guidelines for Canby Utility.   Member Wagner seconded, and the 
motion passed unanimously. 

Interim General Manager Carol Sullivan presented a recommendation to recruit for a Finance 
Manager and appoint her as the General Manager. She felt that this approach would be a good 
succession plan for the utility. Sullivan stated that she was willing to accept the risk of a six-
month probationary period. If the Board decided to go another direction at that time, they would 
then proceed with recruitment for a new General Manager. Sullivan thanked the Board for their 
consideration of her request. The board members shared their support for Sullivan and expressed 
their confidence in her abilities to serve in the General Manager role. Chair Thompson noted that 
Board Attorney Ashley Driscoll could prepare a contract for the Board and Sullivan to review, 
and the Board concurred.   

Chair Thompson acknowledged Council Liaison Bajorin and thanked him for sharing an email 
he received from another city council member regarding the City of Molalla’s wastewater 
discharge. Thompson briefly talked about the document that Canby Utility and Veolia’s staff 
prepared to help provide some history and current information on Molalla's discharge that could 
impact our water quality. Thompson invited Councilor Bajorin to share his thoughts on the 
information we provided. Bajorin said that it was beneficial to give him a better understanding of 
the issue. He also expressed the importance of ensuring that the activities upriver are being 
monitored.  

Purchasing Agent Sue Arthur reported that the Oregon Health Authority approved Canby 
Utility's Water Master Plan in April 2010 and is in effect for 20 years. There is a requirement for 
a formal plan review under certain circumstances during those 20 years. The City of Canby has 
made staff aware of development projects expected to begin soon that do not exist in the current 
master plan. Canby Utility must complete a plan review to proceed with these significant 
additions to the existing system. Arthur stated that due to the urgency to get the plan review 
started so that these projects can proceed, staff issued a Request for Proposal for the plan update 
on January 18 with a bid opening date of February 10. The bid amounts are not expected to 
exceed $100,000. The plan review is in the current fiscal year budget. Arthur noted that should 
the bids exceed $100,000, staff will need board approval to award the contract. In this scenario, a 
second board meeting will need to occur later this month so that the plan update can proceed 
without delay.   Arthur noted that the engineers anticipate the plan review will take about nine 
months to complete. Discussion ensued regarding the bid process, timelines, and the 
developments driving the plan update.  

Interim General Manager Carol Sullivan reported that she attended a wildfire mitigation virtual 
workshop with staff to prepare them for drafting Canby Utility’s Wildfire Mitigation Plan. The 
Public Utilities Commission requires the plan to be approved by the Board and submitted to 
them by June 30, 2022. Sullivan stated that Operations Manager Jason Berning is taking the lead 
on this project. 

2



Canby Utility 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 

Sullivan reported that Essex Construction completed the final piece of the Combined Service 
Center project needed for the City of Canby to sign off on the Certificate of Occupancy. This 
work included a section of the sidewalk that was in question on the plans.  

Sullivan also reported that the office would be closed on February 21 for the President’s Day 
holiday. 

Member Wagner made the *MOTION to adjourn the meeting.   Member Hill seconded, and the 
motion passed unanimously. 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 

Melody Thompson, Chair David Horrax, Member 

Tim Gustafson, Member Robert Hill, Member  

Todd Wagner, Member Barbara Benson, Board Secretary 

3



CANBY UTILITY  
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 22, 2022 
Due to COVID-19 Pandemic, the Board of Directors and staff attended the meeting virtually. The public was 
invited to attend the meeting virtually or in person at Canby Utility's office, with measures to comply with the 

Governor’s Executive Order regarding social distancing. 

Board Present: Chair Thompson; Members Hill, Wagner, Horrax, and Gustafson 

Staff Present: Barbara Benson, Board Secretary 

Others Present: Ashley Driscoll, Board Attorney 

Chair Thompson called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. and read the Executive 
Session announcement. 

Member Wagner made the *MOTION to go into Executive Session according to ORS 
192.660(2)(f) to discuss exempt public records. Member Hill seconded, and the motion passed 
unanimously.  

The regular meeting recessed at 7:03 p.m. 

The regular meeting reconvened at 7:37 p.m. 

Chair Thompson opened the discussion of the General Manager’s employment agreement. Board 
Attorney Ashley Driscoll reviewed the items for discussion. These items included 1) term of the 
agreement, 2) severance, 3) vacation and benefits, 4) residency, 5) probationary period, 6) salary 
review, and 7) salary.   

The Board discussed and had consensus to offer Carol Sullivan the following: 1) a two-year 
employment agreement, 2) a six-month probationary period, 3) one month of severance for each 
year served in the General Manager position, and 4) maintain the existing vacation structure that 
the management team receives with a provision for board approval the vacation roll-over 
accruals. The Board also concurred that Sullivan does not need to relocate to reside within the 
city limits, with her current residence being within close proximity to Canby. A brief discussion 
ensued about the salary review and salary provisions. The Board wanted Chair Thompson to 
have a conversation with Sullivan first on salary expectations and then bring it back to the Board 
for further discussion.      

Member Gustafson made the *MOTION to delegate authority to Chair Thompson to negotiate 
the terms of the contract within the parameters given by the Board, understanding that the 

4



Canby Utility 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 22, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

agreement will go to the Board for final review. Member Horrax seconded, and the motion 
passed 5-0. 

Member Wagner made the *MOTION to adjourn the meeting.   Member Hill seconded, and the 
motion passed unanimously. 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:49 p.m. 

Melody Thompson, Chair David Horrax, Member 

Tim Gustafson, Member Robert Hill, Member  

Todd Wagner, Member Barbara Benson, Board Secretary 

5



CANBY UTILITY  
EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 22, 2022 
Due to COVID-19 Pandemic, the Board of Directors and staff attended the meeting virtually. 

Board Present: Chair Thompson; Members Hill, Wagner, Horrax, and Gustafson 

Staff Present: Barbara Benson, Board Secretary  

Others Present: Ashley Driscoll, Board Attorney 

The Executive Session was opened at 7:02 p.m. by Chair Thompson pursuant to ORS 
192.660(2)(f) for the purpose of discussing exempt public records. 

There being no further business, the Executive Session adjourned at 7:37 p.m. 

Melody Thompson, Chair David Horrax, Member 

Tim Gustafson, Member Robert Hill, Member  

Todd Wagner, Member Barbara Benson, Board Secretary 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
March 4, 2022 

 
 
TO: Chair Thompson, Member Hill, Member Horrax, Member Gustafson, and 

Member Molamphy 
 
FROM: Carol Sullivan, Finance Manager 
 
SUBJECT: FY 23 Operating & Capital Budget Process 
 
 
The following is the schedule for the development and completion of the FY 23 Operating 
& Capital Budgets. 

• March 22nd - E-mail Capital Budget forms to Management Team  

• March 29th - E-mail Operating Budget forms to Department 
heads 

• April 19th and 26th - Check with department heads to review 
budget progress, determine final steps to reach completion  

• May 11th - Departmental Operating & Capital Budgets due 

• May 23rd - Start budget review process with General Manager 

• May 27th - Complete budget review process with General 
Manager 

• June 10th - Include Proposed Operating & Capital Budgets in 
Board packet 

• June 14th - Review Proposed Operating & Capital Budgets with 
Board 

If you have further questions or would like more information please let me know.   

16


	2-8-22 Minutes.edited
	CANBY UTILITY
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	FEBRUARY 8, 2022


	2-22-22 Minutes Special Mtg.edited
	CANBY UTILITY
	SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	FEBRUARY 22, 2022


	2-22-22 EXEC Minutes
	CANBY UTILITY
	EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES
	FEBRUARY 22, 2022


	RedFlag
	FY 23 Memo Board-Staff Budget
	MEMORANDUM

	3-8-22 Agenda.pdf
	AGENDA
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. AGENDA
	III. CONSENT AGENDA
	IV. CITIZEN INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS
	V. BOARD REPORT
	VI. STAFF REPORTS
	VII. ADJOURN





